SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 21, 2012
9:06 a. m

9:06: 47 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stedman called the Senate Finance Commttee
nmeeting to order at 9:06 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny d son

Senat or Joe Thonmas

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Lesil MQ@ire, Vice-Chair
Senat or Johnny Ellis

ALSO PRESENT

M chael Burns, Executive Director, Al aska Pernmanent Fund;
M chael O Leary, Executi ve Vi ce Presi dent, Cal | an
Associ at es

SUMVARY

NCapital Markets Qutlook and Permanent Fund Perfornmance
Revi ew

9:07:17 AM

M CHAEL BURNS, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA PERMANENT FUND,
presented a PowerPoint presentation, "Alaska Permanent
Fund, Designed for Sustainability."” He |ooked at slide 2,
"FY 2011 Performance", and noted that the total return was
20.6 percent, the benchmark return was 21.5 percent, the
endi ng bal ance was $40.1 billion, the change from FY 11 was
$6.9 billion, and the dividend was $801 nilli on.

M. Burns discussed slide 3, "FY 2012 to-date", and
explained that the total return was -4.5 percent, the



benchmark return was -4.6 percent, the ending balance was
$39 billion, and the change fromFY 11 was -$1.1 billion.

M. Burns highlighted slide 4, "Renewable Resource", and
stated that $15.6 billion had been deposited into the Fund
to date; $19.2 billion had been paid in dividends to date;
and the current value of the fund was $40.7 billion.

Co-Chair Hof fman wondered how nuch the |egislature had
deposited since the Permanent Fund's inception. M. Burns
replied that the nunber was included in the $15.6 billion,
and estimated that it was approximtely $15.5 billion. He
stressed that the Fund nostly consisted of oil royalties.

M. Burns discussed slide 5, "Tysons Corner Center." He
expl ai ned that Tysons Corner Center in Washington, DC had 2
mllion square feet developed, and 1.4 mllion square feet
were entitled. The building held apartnents, office space,
and a hotel; and train access was in under devel opnent from
DC to Dulles.

Co-Chair Stedman requested an analysis of the three, five,
and ten-year conpounded returns. M. Burns stated that the
conpounded returns would be presented later in the neeting.

9:13:17 AM

M. Burns |ooked at slide 6, "299 Park Avenue." He stated
that 299 Park Avenue was a recent acquisition. The partners
were the Fisher Brothers, and it was 1.1 mllion square
feet of office space. The total property value was $1.2
billion. He stressed that it was a mjor investnent, and
the Permanent Fund Corporation was a 50 percent partner
with the Fisher Brothers. He noted that the Fisher
Foundation, which was founded by the Fisher Brothers,
opened a Fisher House at the Elnendorf Hospital. He stated
that there were 56 Fisher Houses at military and veterans
hospitals. He felt that the Fisher House was beneficial to
famlies of wounded sol di ers.

Co- Chair Stednan surm sed that 299 Park Avenue was worth
approximately $1 billion. M. Burns expounded that it was
worth $1.2 billion. Co-Chair Stedman surm sed that the
State had a 50 percent share. M. Burns agreed. He
furthered that the State contributed $400 nmllion, and
there was sone debt on the State's share.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 02/21/12 9:06 A M



Co-Chair Stednan wondered if the State's |everage equal ed
that of the Fisher Brothers. M. Burns responded that the
debt was already on the property, because the State bought
out another partner.

Co- Chair Stedman wondered if the $400 mllion was for the
entire property or strictly on the State-owned portion. M.
Burns replied that the $400 mllion was on the entire

property.

Co-Chair Stedman requested further information regarding
how the real estate was nmanaged. He believed that the real
estate owned by the Permanent Fund Corporation was nostly
equity. M. Burns replied that the preferred nethod was to
own the properties outright, although, if there was sone
existing debt it wuld be nmanaged appropriately. He
expl ai ned that there was sone debt at the Tyson Center, and
the real estate investrment trust that handles the retail
end calls for use of nodest |everage.

M. Burns discussed slide 7, "Gty Centre Il & IlIl." He
stated that Gty Centre was l|located in Houston, Texas. It
was 150,000 square feet of retail and office space, and
woul d be 270,000 after construction. The Cty Centre Il and
1l had a $50 million property value. He added that there
was going to be a City Centre IV. He explained that City
Centre 11l would be the canpus for the Texas A & M Busi ness
School. He stressed that it was currently an active year
for real estate.

9:18: 08 AM

M. Burns introduced M. O Leary. He explained that Callan
Associates had been the Permanent Fund Corporation's
i nvest ment consul tant since 1990.

M CHAEL O LEARY, EXECUTI VE VI CE PRESI DENT, CALLAN
ASSCClI ATES, stated that he was going to present the final
performance nunbers and the benchmark nunber for the first
six nonths. He renmarked that the performance was slightly
better than previously reflected, because the benchmark
index reflecting all categories was slightly worse than
what M. Burns had indicated. He stated that the half-year
saw a negative return of $466 mllion, versus a benchmark
return of -$526 mllion (six nonths, ended Decenber 2011).

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 02/21/12 9:06 A M



Co-Chair Stedman requested a table format of the various
nom nal and real returns. M. OLeary agreed to provide
that i nformation

M. O Leary discussed the PowerPoint presentation "2012
Economic Environment and Capital Markets Review Senate
Finance Commttee" (copy on file). He stated that the
intention of his presentation was as foll ows:

Eval uate the current environment and econom c outl ook
for the U S. and other mgjor industrial countries:

—Busi ness cycles, relative growh, inflation.

-Examine the relationships between the econony and
asset -class performance patterns.

-Examine recent and long-run trends in asset class
per f or mance.

Apply market insight:

—Consul tant experience - Plan Sponsor, Manager Search
Specialty

—l ndustry consensus

—Client Policy Review Conmittee

Test the projections for reasonable results.

9:23: 01 AM

Co-Chair Stedman requested a definition of "strategic"
within the industry. M. OLeary replied that the word,
strategic, referred to the general l|evel of long-term risk
and return that a particular fund or advisor was pursuing.
He explained that an equity nutual fund had a strategic
all ocation, and a balance fund typically had a strategic
target of 60 to 65 percent in equities and the renainder in
bonds. Short-term actual asset allocation may vary from the
strategic allocation target, but not typically by very
much. He noted that major funds |like the Permanent or State
pensi on systens tending towards strategic targets, and
recogni zed that many investnents were not |iquid.

M. O Leary stressed that he and his associates were not
consi dered econom sts. He furthered that their expectations
were incorporated with the economic setting and inportant
secular relationships wth respect to long-run grow h,
estimates, and inflation.

M. OLeary highlighted slide 2, "Thenes Explored 1in

Setting the 2012 Expectations.” He stressed that the
projections were nade for every nmjor asset category. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 02/21/12 9:06 A M



explained that the focus was on a range of expected
returns. The mddle of the range was projected, followed by
the extremties of the range. He stated that the range
woul d be broader, if the time-horizon was shortened. He
stated that the projection process began in late 2011, and
rem nded the commttee that the first quarter in 2011 was
pretty good, the second quarter was "not terrible", and the
third calendar quarter was "a disaster.” The third quarter
was bad, because the equity markets plunmeted; the interest
rates spread w dened markedly between credit instrunments
and governnent instrunents; and the dollar strengthened
markedly as the worldwi de investors were very concerned
with developnents in Europe. He noted that the fourth
guarter saw a significant recovery in the equity market
and a slight narrowing credit spreads. He stated that there
was an expectation of greater growh than what was
ultimately realized, due to the effects of the earthquake
in Japan. He noted that the pace of the recovery was sl ower
than other economic recoveries. He explained that during
the fornulation of expectations, a broad range of outcones
was consi der ed.

9:28: 56 AM

M. O Leary briefly discussed slide 3, "The Capital Markets
in 2011." He noted the extrenely |low |level of cash returns
in 2011, and the consuner price index (CPl) had increased
by alnost 3 percent. He remarked that the Barclays Capita
(BC) aggregate had increased by alnost 3 percent. He
furthered that the international stocks were significantly
| ower than expect ed.

M. O Leary displayed slide 4, "Stock Market Returns by
Cal endar Year." He stated that the histogram displayed the
returns for the prior four calendar years. He announced
that the current day's nmarket had reached a point that had
not been achieved since My 2008, which was before the
onset of the financial meltdown.

M. O Leary discussed slide 5, "Below Par Recovery for the
U.S. Econony." He stated that the graph displayed the
annualized rate of real Goss Donestic Product (GDP)
growh, with the gold bars representing projections.

M. O Leary highlighted slide 6, "Deeper Recession, Slower

Recovery." He explained that the graph displayed the
conmpari son between the current economc recovery and the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 02/21/12 9:06 A M



average post-1950 econonmic recovery. He stated that the
graph highlighted the GDP growh from the |ow point, and
stressed that the current recovery was a "nuted" recovery
conpared to the 1950s, 1960s, 1970s, 1980s, or 1990s.

M. O Leary discussed slide 7, "WIl W Fall Back Into
Recession?" He highlighted the reasons why there could be

anot her recessi on: an econony near stall speed is
vul nerable to shocks; the Fed cannot help nuch; there were
risks of policy mstakes |ike premature fiscal tightening

and policy paralysis; the Eurozone is the immediate risk

and oil shocks are a perennial threat. He also highlighted
the reasons why there would not be another recession: U.S.
banks were in better shape than 2008; nonf i nanci al
corporation's balance sheets were strong;, exposures to
Eurozone sovereign debt were better wunderstood than were
t he exposures to sub-prine debt; and Europe was unlikely to
allow a major institution to collapse simlar to Lehman.

9:33:46 AM

M. O Leary displayed slide 8, "Mddest Enploynent G owh
and Hi gh Unenpl oynment Sapped Confidence." He expl ai ned that
the red line represented the wunenploynent rate. He felt
that the unenploynent rate was not as good as the
statistics portrayed, and did not see anything devious. He
stressed that there was enploynment growh, but there was a
significant contraction in the |abor force participation
rate. He noted the unenploynent indicator known as "USCl S"
pointed out that the broader nunber of part-tine,
di scouraged workers and those receiving unenpl oynent
benefits was near 15 percent.

\V/ g O Leary discussed slide 9, "Good News: Initia

Unenpl oynment Insurance Clains Are Edging Down." He stated
that the slide showed sone inprovenent in unenploynent
i nsurance cl ai ns.

M. O Leary highlighted slide 10, "A Rebound in Household
Formation Required for Recovery in Housing Starts." He
noted that the household formation had risen, so there was
a new focus on house demand.

Co-Chair Stedman queried the definition of "household

formation." M . O Leary replied that he understood
"household formation" to mean two or nore people living
t oget her.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 02/ 21/ 12 9:06 A M



M. O Leary discussed slide 11, "Consuners Spendi ng Has Not
Been a Strong Driver of Recovery." He explained that
consuner spending had been a source of some growh, but was
not robust.

M. O Leary displayed slide 12, "Pent-up Demand for Durable
Goods Drives Gowth in Consumer Spending." He noted the
sharp turn-around in durable goods, specifically related to
aut o sal es.

M. O Leary highlighted slide 13, "So is Rising Inflation
an Enmerging Threat?"

Econom c theory says inflation HAS to take off:
—Unpr ecedent ed, synchroni zed gl obal nonetary sti nul us.

-Interest rates at historic |ows.

—Unprecedented fiscal stimulus.

- Corr espondi ng unpr ecedent ed f eder al budget

deficit.

-Inflation beneficial to debtors—noral hazard?
—Commodity prices itching to rise at the first sign of
gr owt h.

—Dol | ar must weaken, furthering pressure on inflation.
Practical reality:

-The U S. and the rest of the world face very slow
recoveri es:

-Fiscal and nonetary stinulus kept us out of a

| onger, deeper recession, but

-Aggregate demand is weak, no post-recession

surge as fiscal stinulus fades.

-Capacity utilization has plumreted in the US. ;

we are awash in new capacity overseas, and stil

inporting deflationary pressure.

-Weak job market, no wage pressures.

—Interest rates nmay rise sharply without a surge in
inflation.

—Inflation a very real threat, but it my be up to
five years off.

—Commodity prices represent a wildcard threat in the
shorter term particularly a supply-side disruption

-Commodity spike nore likely to trigger another

sl owdown than a general price spiral

M. O Leary discussed slide 14, "Consuner Price Inflation

Expected to Ease in 2012." He pointed out that inflation
should relax in 2012.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 02/ 21/ 12 9:06 A M



9:38:40 AM

M. O Leary displayed slide 15, "Corporate Liquidity and
Gowh." He stated that the graphs were sourced froma J.P.
Morgan publication, and illustrated that the aggregate
corporate bal ance sheet was doing well. He explained that
the cash graph was represented as the percentage of tota
current assets. He remarked that dividends had increased,
but not as rapidly as the cash increase. He renmarked that
the tax uncertainty had an inpact on individual's dividend
pay-out decisions that sone share-holders may regret. He
furthered that share-holders could retain assets through
st ock buy-backs; cash for capital expenditures; and nergers
and acquisitions. He stressed that asset-retention did not
have nmeaning related to nergers and acquisitions, but the
capital expenditures were a driving force in the econony.

Co-Chair Stedman wondered how the current econony would
conpare to the econony at the end of Wrld War II. M.
O Leary did not know, but agreed to provide that
i nformation.

M. OLeary highlighted slide 16, "Business Equipnent
Demand is Strengthening.” He remarked that Dbusiness
equi pnent demand was currently strengthening.

M. O Leary discussed slide 17, "U. S. Economc Gowh by
Sector." He explained that the spreadsheet displayed the
year to year percentage change for the major sectors of the
econony. He pointed out that in 2011, real GDP growth was
only 1.8 percent.

-GP hit bottom in Q@ 2009. After inventory and
stinmulus boost, econony was fully expected to slow in
second half of 2010 and through 2011, but the bottom
seened to fall out of economc growh, particularly
during the first half of 2011

-As confidence deteriorated with the European debt
crisis and the US budget inpasse over the sumer,
concerns rose for a return to recession,

-However, data on the U S. econony began to surprise,
notching solid growh in the 3rd and 4th quarters.
I ndicators ranging from orders to jobs to consuner
spending all strengthened in direct contrast to
depressed reports on consuner and busi ness confi dence.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 02/21/12 9:06 A M



- Not e: Imports are a negative nunber in the
cal cul ati on of GDP

M. O Leary displayed slide 18, "What WII| the Fed Do?"

-The Fed is worried; it had expected 2.7-2.9 percent
grow h for 2011, 3.3-3.7 percent for 2012.

-2011 cane in at 1.8 percent.

-@obal Insight (and consensus) forecast now 2.0
percent (2012), 2.4 percent (2013).

-Fed has used its prime anmunition already.

-No rate hike till md-2013 "prom sed. "

- Mar ket assunes no hi ke before 2014.

-Hurdle for QEIIl is high — but we may clear it.

9:43: 40 AM

Senat or Thonas wondered if there was nore science regarding
what was currently occurring, or if the focus was mainly
hi stori cal . M. O Leary replied that the focus was
hi storical . He stressed the significance of energing
econom es, those econom es were nuch nore stable than many
devel oped nations. The energing economes had |ower debt
bur dens.

M. O Leary highlighted slide 19, "Federal Funds Rate Near
Zero Until 2015." He explained that the federal funds rate
was near zero, and long rates would also stay low, wth a
steep vyield curve. He explained that the red Iline
represented federal funds, the yellow |ine was the 10-year
treasury, and the blue Iine was the 30-year nortgage rate.

M. O Leary discussed slide 20, "The Econony and the
Capital Markets."

The econony was fully expected to neander through a
weak recovery, as the conbination of recession

financial crisis and deleveraging required time to
wor k t hrough the system

—GDP growth was expected to slacken in 2011, but
events and enotions conbined to spur investors into a
series of risk on/risk off trades that drove market
volatility.

—Econom ¢ data suggest the econony continues to grow,
but such growth will remain nodest.

—Doubl e-dip recession is possible, but not the
expect ed out cone.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 02/21/12 9:06 A M



Cal l an’ s outl ook:

—Inflation wll likely drift hi gher, but not
i mredi atel y. Painfully low interest rates wll
persist, now that the Fed has “guaranteed” |ow rates
through 2013. W expect interest rates to rise
gradual |y after 2013.

—Hi storic nomnal return averages wll be hard to
achieve over the short, nedium and even the |onger
run.

—-Stocks rallied in the fourth quarter of 2011, saving
the results for the year. However, prospects for
above-trend growh are weak; conpanies are strong
enough to attain trend profit growth, but not a |ot
nor e.

—-The housing market has yet to truly hit bottom
despite nortgage rates at an all-tinme |ow. The “shadow
inventory” of homes yet to foreclose still hangs over
t he market .

—The chance that we could see another |eg down on
housing is the greatest risk to the econony, and to a
defl ationary spiral

—The dollar should face substantial downward pressure
as a result of US. policy. The problem of course, is
what ot her currency can take the dollar’s place?

—-The path to a rational set of |long-term capital
mar ket outcomes is likely through an ugly shorter term
period of rising interest rates, capital losses in
fixed inconme, and volatile equity markets.

9:48: 33 AM

M. O Leary highlighted slide 21, "Equity is nore
Reasonably Priced." He explained that the price-to-earnings
ratio for the Standard and Poors 500 (SP 500) was trailing
below its long-run (1954-2011) average. He stated that if
interest rates rise 1 percent fromtheir end-of-year |evel
a 30-year treasury would decline in value by nearly 20
percent. There is no yield cushion to protect bond
i nvestors.

M. O Leary displayed slide 22, "Building US. Equity
Expectations."

Dividend Yields Likely to Stay Near Current Levels.

—Fi nancing uncertainty continues so cash unlikely to
be returned to investors.

—Fi xed i ncone yields expected to remain | ow

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 02/ 21/ 12 9:06 A M



Equity Valuations Currently Mderate to Attractive
After Market Angst During 2010 and 2011

Corporate Profits Near Long-Term G owth Rate.
—Conpani es may be able to sustain trend or above trend
profit growh even in a weak recovery.

Conmpany Bal ance Sheets Are Strong, But No One is Eager
to Spend. Large Cash Hol dings a Drag on ROE

Consunption Still Dom nates Econom ¢ G owt h.

—Unenpl oynent hi gh but finally declining,

—\Weal t h depl et ed,

—Del ever agi ng conti nues,

—Savi ngs repl eni shed.

Exports Remain Strong, in Spite of Strengthening
Dol | ar but Inpact Miuted by Size of Econony.

M . O Leary discussed slide 23, "Current Yield is
Exceptionally Low " He stated that the BC aggregate bond
index daily yield was the worst from January 2, 2001 to
Decenmber 30, 2011. He stated that the index that was
di splayed in 2011 had a duration of alnobst five years. He
stressed that the yield-to-wrse for the investnent grade
bond market represented in the chart was a "naive"
predi ctor of the next five-year return for bonds, or 2.25
per cent .

Co-Chair Stednan requested a definition of duration. M.
O Leary replied that duration was a neasure of interest-
rate sensitivity and cash-flow He explained that a
duration of five, would suggest that if there was a 1
percent change across the entire yield curve, there would
be a 5 percent change in the price of the bond.

9:52: 37 AM

M. O Leary highlighted slide 24, "Treasury Rates Fell wth
Fears of a Faltering Recovery." He comrunicated that the
graph showed the U S. Treasury yield curve at the end of
the six years, prior. He noted that the change from 2010 to
2011 was represented by the gold arrow He urged the
committee to study the chart, because it denonstrated the
magni tude of the change primarily at the "front-end" of the
yield curve. He noted that the change was due to decreasing
demand, but also due to nonetary policy actions. He
explained that the 2.75 percent short-term interest rate
projection over ten years was due to the wunremarkable
hi story.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 02/ 21/ 12 9:06 A M



Co-Chair Stedman inferred that there would be substantial
"bl eeding” within the bond narket. M. O Leary affirned,
and added that the long-termrates had fallen, so when the
short-term rates rise, customers would demand a prem um to
incur the risk of longer termrates rising.

Co-Chair Stedman requested a bond portfolio projection
recomendation to the Permanent Fund Corporation. M.
O Leary suggested that the Permanent Fund Corporation be
flexible in their intentions. He felt that the Permanent
Fund Corporation should not "lock up" the 3 percent, 30-
year treasury bonds. He noted that the bond narket
reflected a wdening in spreads between non-governnment
i ssuers and the reserve currencies.

Co-Chair Stedman queried the treasury inflation-protected
securities (TIPS). M. O Leary replied that TIPS had been
the highest perfornmer in his personal retirenment savings
He felt that the real yields on TIPS were currently very
smal |, but provided good |ong-terminflation protection.

M. O Leary highlighted slide 27, "Capi tal Mar ket
Expectations, Return and Risk." He stated that a geonetric
return was a conpound annual return, and an arithmetic
return referred to a return for a single year. He explained
that the nore volatile an asset category, the greater the
difference between the expected arithnetic and geonetric
returns. He noted that the focus should be on the risk of
the geonetric mean return related to the expected standard
devi ati on.

10: 01:16 AM

M. OLeary looked at slide 28, "2012 Capital Market
Expectations Largely Unconstrained, Asset Mx Return and
Ri sk Absol ute Return Capped at 5 percent.”

Co-Chair Stednman queried the 2011 tenure geonetric return
versus the projected 10-year geonetric return reflected in
the fourth colum. M. O Leary responded that the far
right colum reflected the 2011 expectations. He noted that
interest rates had changed, so the starting-point for bonds
was even |ower than what was expected. He stressed that
there was a different 10-year period than the 10-year
period that was expected the year prior.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 02/ 21/ 12 9:06 A M



Co-Chair Stednan observed that the projected 10-year
geonetric return only showed two years with higher than 8
percent energing markets, equity and private equity. He
wondered how the goal would be achieved with an 8 percent
benchmark. M. O Leary responded that 8 percent would be a
very aggressive benchmark. He noted that the benchmarks
could be considered an estinmate of long-term returns, but
the orientation would be nostly equity based. Co-Chair
Stedman asked if 60 percent was put in the SP 500, and 40
percent in TIPS, a balance portfolio would reflect a 4.68
percent return. He wondered if that was a proper
i nterpretation. M. O Leary responded wth page 28,
"Fal | out of 2012 Capital Market Expectations.”

What happened in 2011? The economi c recovery appeared
to lose steam investors lost faith, the equity market
took beating through @3, and interest rates fel
sharply, from already-low |evels. Strong fourth
gquarter pushed U S. equities back up, but only enough
to end the year flat sharply; non-US. nmarkets were
not so fortunate. Bonds recorded yet anot her
(unexpected) stellar year as interest rates dropped in
the flight fromrisk

Bond returns going forward— not a lot of room for
optimsm Interest rates have nowhere to go but up,
right?

Cash cannot sustain a negative real yield over the
longer term O can it? W project an upward sl oping
yield curve, with very a slimrisk premum for bonds
over cash.

Building equity returns fromlong-term fundanental s:
—Earni ngs grow h — outl ook now in jeopardy.

—Real GDP - how sl ow can we go?

—Dividends & other returns on free cash flow — can
di vi dends surpass Treasury yields? For how | ong?

—Val uati on — cheaper, but cheap enough?

Co- Chai r St edrman expressed concern regar di ng t he
substantial deviation from the expectations and forecasts.
M. O Leary agreed to be available for further neetings.

10: 12: 50 AM

M. O Leary continued to discuss slide 29:

How t o make investors very unhappy in 3 easy nunbers:
—Bonds = 3 percent, or |ess

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 02/ 21/ 12 9:06 A M



—-Stocks = 8 percent, or |ess

—-60/40 = 7 percent, or less...

—Qur 2012 nunbers reflect our optimsm for the
econony, for inflation, and for the capital markets.
—The <challenge: to refrain from translating these
expectations into a need to take on nore risk in
pursuit of return.

—How does one keep invested in fixed income - a
prudent investor’s anchor to w ndward -when we all
KNOW it’s going to lose noney while interest rates
rise?

Co-Chair Stedman expressed concern regarding the ten-year
geonetric expected return. M. O Leary responded that if
there was a significant portion of the portfolio earning 3
percent, there would not be an expectation beyond 7
per cent .

M. O Leary discussed slide 31, "10-Year vs. 30-Year
Capital Market Expectations.”

Over a 30-year time horizon, our capital market
expectations would reference long-term historical nean
results, with an overlay of infornmed judgnment. Key
el ements to consi der

—Nom nal returns

—Inflation
—Real returns
—-Risk prema - bonds over cash, stocks over bonds,

| ong duration over short

—Long termunderlying economc gromh (real GDP).
Current expectations:

—-Stocks: 7.75 percent nomnal, 5.25 percent real, 4.50
percent prem um over bonds

—Bonds: 3.25 percent nominal, 0.75 percent real, 0.50
percent prem um over cash

—Cash: 2.75 percent nom nal, 0.25 percent rea
—Inflation: 2.5 percent

—Underlying economc growh (real GP) - 2 to 3
percent per year.

Long-term (30-year) expectations:

—-Stocks: 9.5 percent nomnal, 6.5 percent real, 4.5
percent prem um over bonds

—Bonds: 5 percent nomnal, 2 percent real, 1 percent
prem um over cash

—Cash: 4 percent nomnal, 1 percent real

—Inflation: 3.0 percent

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 02/ 21/ 12 9:06 A M



—Underlying econonmic growth (real GOP) - 3 to 3.5
percent per year.

M. O Leary concluded his presentation. He stressed that
his conpany routinely conpares its approaches to others.

10:17:49 AM

Co-Chair Stedman requested an additional presentation
regardi ng the Permanent Fund Corporation's conclusions. M.
Burns replied that the ultimte asset allocation would not
be determned until the followi ng May, and then there would
be a few nonths until it was ultimately finalized.

Senator O son |ooked at slide 7, and wondered if there was
any anticipation of a financial buffer to steer the
presidential election on a particular direction. M .
O Leary replied that it was unlikely, unless there was a
traumatic event.

Senator O son pointed out that there were issues in G eece
regardi ng the euro-zone, and wondered how that affected the
strength of the dollar. M. OLeary replied that the
expectation was that governnent bond rates and the current
economc climte was difficult to envision, because the
bond rates were very hi gh.

Senator A son stressed that he would like to know what
woul d happen to the strength of the dollar, as a result of
the financial status in Europe. M. O Leary stated the
dollar is strengthened and the interest rates decline.

Co-Chair Stedman di scussed the follow ng day's agenda.
#

ADJ QURNVENT
10: 23: 12 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:23 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 15 02/ 21/ 12 9:06 A M



